1986

Wendell L. Butcher and Irene B. Butcher v. Frank K. Gilroy : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

STATEMENT OF ISSUES PRESENTED ON APPEAL

1. Did the Lower Court err in dismissing the Butcher's Cause of Action as being barred by the Statute of Limitations.

STATUTES AND CONSTITUTIONAL PROVISIONS

Statutes

This appeal addresses the manner in which the district court applied the six year statute of limitations, Sections 78-12-1 and 78-12-23, U.C.A., 1953, as amended, to bar an accounting under a written land development contract stipulation to apportion and account for the proceeds from the sales of certain lands,. Section 78-12-1, U.C.A., reads as follows:

"78-12-1. Time for Commencement of actions generally.--Civil actions can be commenced only within the period prescribed in this chapter, after the cause of action shall have accrued, except where in special cases a different limitation is prescribed by statute."

Section 78-12-23, U.C.A., reads as follows:

"78-23-23. Within six years.--Within six years:

- (1) An action for the mesne profits of real property.
- (2) An action upon any contract, obligations or liability founded upon an instrument in writing, except those mentioned in the preceding section [78-12-22].

More particularly, it addresses the Lower Court's failure to extend the time period pursuant to Section 78-12-44, U.C.A., 1953, as amended, for bringing an action for an accounting another six years from the date Mr. Gilroy received payment of all or part of the principal and interest under the contract when he sold the property to his son's corporation without notice to the Butchers. Section 78-12-44 reads as follows:

"78-12-44. Payment--Acknowledgment--Promise to pay extends period.
--In any case founded on contract, when any part of the principal or interest shall have been paid, or an acknowledgment of an existing liability, debt or claim, or any promise to pay the same, shall have been made, an action may be brought within the period prescribed for the same after such payment, acknowledgment or promise; but such acknowledgment or promise must be in writing, signed by the party to be charged thereby. When a right of action is barred by the provisions of any statute, it shall be unavailable either as a cause of action or ground of defense. (Emphasis added).

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENTS

The lower court dismissed the Butcher's action for an accounting and review of the reasonableness of the terms of the sale under a written settlement agreement where the proceeds of the sale of certain real estate were to be divided 32% to the appellants-Butchers and 68% to respondents-Gilroy and his family corporation R.G.H., Inc. owned and controlled by his son on the grounds that the statute of limitations had run.

The Butchers challenge this ruling under the facts of this case upon the grounds that where one mutual obligor received the proceeds from the land sale within the statute of limitations time period, it extended the statutory time period to run another six years from receipt of the sale proceeds. Co-obligor Frank G. Gilroy sold the property in question just prior to the lapsing of the statute of limitations to a family corporation, R.G.H., Inc., and restarted the six year statute of limitations from the date of sale. As suit was brought within six years from the date of the land sale, the Butchers contend that Frank G. Gilroy was liable for an accounting and review of the reasonableness of the terms of the sale under the terms of the stipulation. As this accounting cause of action was initiated within the extended period of the statute of limitations, the lower court's ruling should be reversed and remanded for an accounting and review of the reasonableness of the terms of the land sale.

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF UTAH

WENDELL L. BUTCHER and
IRENE B. BUTCHER,

Plaintiffs and Appellants

vs.

FRANK K. GILROY and R.G.H., INC.,
a Utah corporation

Defendants and Respondents

:
:
:
:
:
:
:
:
:
:
:
:

Supreme Court No. 20592
Court of Appeals No. 860111-CA

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This is an action for an accounting and review of the reasonableness of the terms of a land sale under a settlement agreement where the proceeds of the sale were to be divided 32% to the Butchers and 68% to Frank K. Gilroy.

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

For purposes of the appeal, the facts alleged in the Butcher's Amended Complaint are deemed admitted; see *Bryan vs. Stillwater Board of Realtors*, 578 F.2d 1319, 1321 (10th Cir. 1977)

Paragraph 4 of the Amended Complaint alleged that on or about October 18, 1971, Wendell L. Butcher, Irene B. Butcher, and Frank K. Gilroy entered into a written Settlement Agreement concerning a dispute of 33 acres abutting the Mountain Dell Golf Course owned by the Butchers and wrongfully conveyed by the Butcher's former attorney, Peter M. Lowe, to Frank K. Gilroy, a copy of the Settlement Agreement is attached as Exhibit A to the Amended Complaint (R. 37-41).

Paragraph 4 of the Amended Complaint further alleged that Frank K. Gilroy was to hold title to the 33 acres surrounding Mt. Dell Golf Course subject to the requirement in paragraph 6 of the stipulation that he sell the property by April, 1976 for the best price attainable and the proceeds be apportioned with 32% paid to the Butchers and 68% paid to Frank K. Gilroy (R.34).

Paragraph 5 of the Amended Complaint alleged that the Butchers and Frank K. Gilroy attempted to sell the property over the years, but because of various subdivision development changes and watershed questions, the parties were delayed in selling the property (R.34-35).

Paragraph 6 of the Amended Complaint alleged that on or about March 8, 1982, within six years of the performance sale date of April, 1976, Frank K. Gilroy sold the property in question to R.G.H., Inc. without notifying the Butchers or accounting to them for their share of the proceeds (R.35). A copy of the warranty deed was attached to the Amended Complaint as Exhibit B (R. 42).

The Butchers continued to attempt to sell the property and periodically notified Frank K. Gilroy of their progress in this regard. Frank K. Gilroy at no time notified plaintiffs that he had sold the property, and continued to encourage the Butchers in their efforts to find a buyer and acquire the necessary building permits from Salt Lake City. Based upon Frank K. Gilroy's representations and assurances that he was also trying to perform the contract, the Butchers continued to attempt to sell the property and work with the city to obtain permits for the property (Paragraph 7, Amended Complaint, R. 35).

To date, Frank K. Gilroy has failed to account to the Butchers or pay them the amounts due and owing under the stipulated agreement as was repeatedly promised (Paragraph 8, Amended Complaint R.35).

The Butchers therefore requested the court to require Frank K. Gilroy to account for all monies received and to apportion the same between the parties under the terms of the stipulated agreement. In the event Frank K. Gilroy failed to acquire fair market value for the property, they requested a judgment against him in the amount of any deficiency. (Paragraph 8, Amended Complaint, R. 35).

After the Butchers filed their Amended Complaint, defendants and respondents refused to produce any discovery documents pursuant to the Butchers' Motion to Produce (R. 18). Instead, the defendants and respondents moved to dismiss the action based on the statute of limitations (R.47). The lower court then dismissed the Action (R. 82,83), even though the Butchers apprised the court in their February 14, 1985 Supplemental Reply Memorandum that defendant Gilroy was absent from the State to prevent the tolling of the statute and that both defendants and respondents repeatedly promised to try and sell the property to induce plaintiffs from suing (R. 75). From the order of dismissal, this appeal was taken.

ARGUMENT

CAUSE OF ACTION NOT BARRED BY STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS

An action based upon a written contract must be commenced within six years after the

cause of action occurred; see Section 78-12-1, Section 78-12-23(2), U.C.A., 1953, as amended. Thus, the accounting action had to be initiated on or before April, 1982 (six years after the date specified for sale of the property by April, 1976) unless Frank K. Gilroy engaged in some type of conduct to extend the statutory period. The Butchers argue that Frank K. Gilroy's secret March 1982 sale of the real estate to R.G.H., Inc. was the date from which the statute of limitations ran on their action for an accounting in the same manner suits based on breach of warranty do not begin to run until the date of a sale of an article; see *M.H. Walker Realty Co. vs. American Surety Co. of New York*, 60 U. 435, 211 P. 998 (1922).

Under Section 78-12-44, U.C.A., 1953, as amended, if respondents received payments of any part of the principal or interest due under the contract, the statute of limitations runs anew from the date of receipt of payment. Section 78-12-44, U.C.A., 1953, as amended, reads as follows:

"78-12-44. Payment-acknowledgment-promise to pay extends period. In any case, founded on contract, when any part of the principal or interest shall have been paid...an action may be brought within the period prescribed for the same after such payment,...."

Frank K. Gilroy received payment for the property subject to the written stipulation in March, 1982. Receipt of this payment extend the statute of limitations for an accounting for another six years from the date of payment - i.e. March, 1988. Suit for an accounting and review of the terms of sale was brought in 1984 well within the extended period of time, since the contract in question required both the Butchers and Frank H. Gilroy to mutually attempt to sell the property and then account to one another for the profits received. As a consequence, the statute of limitations began to run anew the moment the cause of action for an accounting and review of the sale terms arose when the funds were received; see *Frederickson vs. Knight Land Co.*, 667 P.2d 34 (1983) where the Utah Supreme Court indicated that on a contract to mutually account for proceeds received from the sale of the land, the statute of limitations begins to run again on the date of the breach for failure to account for funds received from the land sale.

Frank K. Gilroy sold the land in question to R.G.H., Inc. in March, 1982, within the statute of limitations period, and failed to have the terms of the sale approved by or account to the Butchers for their portion of the sale proceeds. As a consequence, a breach occurred within the statutory time period and restarted the six year statute to run from the date the Frank K. Gilroy received the funds. As suit was brought within six years from the date of this breach, the statute

of limitations does not bar the action. The motion to dismiss was therefore improperly granted, under the *Frederickson* case criteria reaffirming the mutual accounting doctrines contained in *Toponce vs. Corinne Mill and Stock Company*, 6 Utah 439, 24 P.2d 493, affirmed 152 U.S. 405, 14 S.Ct. 632 (1890).

Based on the foregoing case law, and the fact that Frank K. Gilroy concealed the sale and repeatedly encouraged the Butchers to try and sell the property to prevent Butchers from suing (R. 35), he should be estopped from the raising the defense of the statute of limitations; see *Rapp vs. Rapp*, 218 Cal 505, 24 P.2d 161 (1933).

The Butchers also pointed out in their supplemental reply memorandum to the lower court that there is a question of fact as to whether the Gilroys, who maintain a Nevada residence, were absent from the state a sufficient time to prevent the tolling of the statute. Frank K. Gilroy's extended stays in Nevada would delay the tolling of the statute of limitations, until their return under Section 78-12-35, U.C.A., 1953, as amended; see *Snyder vs. Clune*, 390 P.2d 915, 15 U.2d 54 (1964). To resolve this issue, the lower court should have reserved ruling on the matter until after discovery had been completed. As Utah is a notice pleading state, issues regarding the tolling of the statutes of limitation involve questions of fact which cannot be resolved solely from the face of the complaint.

Nor can R.G.H., Inc. be arbitrarily dismissed from the cause of action as a matter of law. Since Frank K. Gilroy refused to undergo discovery, the Butchers were not able to determine if the sale of the property was an installment sale, a conditional sale, or an outright sale. If the sale was conditional, the property would revert back to Frank K. Gilroy upon default of the conditions. Title would not be able to be cleared without R.G.H., Inc.'s joinder as a necessary party. If the funds were to be paid over a period of time, then R.G.H., Inc. was also a necessary party to insure that the funds were paid into court until the accounting was completed.

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