1986

Wendell L. Butcher, Irene B. Butcher v. Frank K. Gilroy, R.G.H., Inc. : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

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

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENTS

1. The Butchers' Amended Complaint pleaded no cause of action whatsoever against R.G.H., Inc. Where a complaint seeks no relief against a named party defendant, it plainly fails to state a claim against that defendant upon which relief may be granted.

2. The settlement agreement at issue between the parties is properly treated as an executory accord and its enforcement is determined through application of contract law principles. The Butchers' claim against Gilroy arises out of his total breach of his duty of performance under the parties' agreement, which occurred when he failed to sell the property in question in April 1976. The Butchers' claim accrued at that time and was barred six years later by the statute of limitations.

3. Nothing about Gilroy's sale of the property to R.G.H., Inc. in March, 1982 operates to extend the time in which the Butchers could commence their action. Gilroy made no "payment" to the Butchers which would toll the statute of limitations under Utah Code Ann. § 78-12-44; nor did the sale itself come within the language of that section. The facts of total breach

by Gilroy and the Butchers' knowledge of those facts were complete in April of 1976.

4. Any non-disclosure by Gilroy of the 1982 sale was immaterial to the Butchers' prospective action against Gilroy for his total breach in 1976. The fact of the ultimate sale was not a fact necessary to the Butchers' determination following April, 1976 that a cause of action existed.

5. The correctness of the rulings by the district court below should be presumed by this Court as a consequence of the Butchers' total failure to support the factual allegations in their brief by citation to the record, their failure to file a docketing statement in compliance with Rule 9 requirements, their failure to follow Rule 11 requirements regarding preparation of a transcript, among other rule violations.

6. The Butchers' argument, raised in their brief, that the statute of limitations should be tolled due to Gilroy's purported absence from the state, is not supported by any well-pleaded facts in their Amended Complaint and is not properly before this Court. The allegation finds no support in the record.

7. The Butchers did not amend their complaint to include any allegation of Gilroy's absence from the state either following the respondent's first motion to dismiss based upon the statute of limitations, or following Judge Rokich's order of dismissal, which had allowed them additional leave to amend. Their election to appeal rather than to amend waives any reliance upon Gilroy's absence as a basis for tolling the statute of limitations. It was not properly at issue before the court below or this Court on review.

ARGUMENTS

I. THE ORDER GRANTING R.G.H., INC.'S MOTION TO DISMISS SHOULD BE AFFIRMED; THE AMENDED COMPLAINT SETS FORTH NO CLAIM AGAINST R.G.H., INC. AT ALL.

Rule 8(a), Utah Rules of Civil Procedure, requires that a pleading setting forth a claim for relief "shall contain (1) a short and plain statement of the claim showing that the pleader is entitled to relief; and (2) a demand for judgment for the relief to which he deems himself entitled." This requirement is amplified by Rule 8(e)(1), which demands that "[e]ach averment of a pleading shall be simple, concise, and direct."

The Appellants' Amended Complaint fails to allege any facts stating any claim for legal or equitable relief against R.G.H., Inc. See copy of Amended Complaint annexed hereto as Exhibit "B" of the Addendum; R. at 34-42. In fact, the prayer for relief makes no mention whatsoever of R.G.H., Inc. See R. 35-36.

In the most literal and absolute sense, the Amended Complaint fails "to state a claim upon which relief can be granted" against R.G.H., Inc. See Rule 12(b)(6), Utah Rules of Civil Procedure. The District Court's order granting R.G.H.'s Motion to Dismiss should be affirmed.

II. THE ORDER GRANTING RESPONDENTS' JOINT MOTION TO DISMISS SHOULD BE AFFIRMED; THE BUTCHERS' ACTION IS BARRED BY THE STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS.

A. Settlement Agreement is an Executory Accord Governed by Contract Law Principles.

Recent decisions of this Court have established that "an agreement of compromise and settlement in a legal dispute constitutes an executory accord." L&A Drywall, Inc. v. Whitmore Construction Co., 608 P.2d 626, 629 (Utah 1980) (footnote omitted); accord, Cox Construction Co. v. State Road Commission, 583 P.2d 85 (Utah 1978).

As such, a party to the agreement aggrieved by an alleged breach thereof by the other party has the option of seeking to enforce the settlement agreement, or regarding the agreement as rescinded and moving against the other party on the underlying claim.

L&A Drywall, Inc., 608 P.2d at 629 (footnote omitted). In this case, the Butchers decisively elected to seek enforcement of the Settlement Agreement in an independent proceeding. See also Restatement (Second) of Contracts § 281 (1981).

As such, the express terms of the Settlement Agreement should be construed and enforced as would be the provisions of other written contracts. See e.g., Condo v. Mulcahey, 88 A.D.2d 497, 454 N.Y.S.2d 308 (1982); cf. Millerberg v. Steadman, 645 P.2d 602 (Utah 1982); Robinson v. Utah State Department. of Natural Resources, 620 P.2d 519 (Utah 1980); Tracy-Collins Bank & Trust Co. v. Travelstead, 592 P.2d 605 (Utah 1979). The rules governing contract actions are applied to actions for breach of compromise or settlement agreements, including such matters as laches or limitations. See 15A C.J.S. Compromise & Settlement § 49 (1967); see also Annot., 94 A.L.R.2d 605 (1964).

B. The Butchers' Action Arises from Breach of the Terms of a Contract and is Barred by the Statute of Limitations.

The applicable statute of limitations provides that an action based on a written contract must be commenced within six years after the cause of action has accrued. Utah Code Ann. §§ 78-12-1; 78-12-23(2) (1977). It is well established that the statute of limitations begins to run at the moment a cause of action arises and the prospective plaintiff gains the right to apply to the courts for remedy. E.g., Fredericksen v. Knight Land Corporation, 667 P.2d 34 (Utah 1982); State Tax Commission v. Spanish Fork, 99 Utah 177, 181-82, 100 P.2d 575, 577 (Utah 1940).

Likewise, the general rule follows that where the period for performance of the contract is fixed, the right of action accrues and the statute begins to run at the expiration of that period. See, e.g., Howarth v. First National Bank of Anchorage, 540 P.2d 486, 490-91 (Alaska 1975) ("[A] cause of action for breach of contract accrues as soon as the promisor fails to do the thing contracted for, and the statute of limitations begins to run at such time.") "A breach of contract is a non-performance of any contractual duty of

immediate performance." Restatement of Contracts § 312; see Enterprise, Inc. v. Nampa City, 96 Idaho 734, 536 P.2d 729, 735 (1975). Thus, the six-year limitations period applicable to this action began running in April, 1976 when Gilroy failed to perform; in April, 1982, that statute became a complete bar to this action.

The obligation of Gilroy to sell the property and distribute its proceeds in April, 1976 represented the whole of Gilroy's remaining performance due under the agreement. As explained by the Restatement of Contracts § 313(1), "[a] total breach of contract is a breach where remedial rights provided by law are substituted for all the existing contractual rights, or can be so substituted by the injured party." Where the "remedial rights provided by law" can be so substituted, the cause of action necessarily accrues, triggering the running of the applicable limitations period. "A claim for total breach is one for damages based on all the injured party's remaining rights to performance." Restatement (Second) of Contracts § 236(1) (1981). "[I]t is clear that, whenever the court will hold that A's breach is a total breach, B can regard A's performance as at an end and at once maintain action for damages for all of his injury, past, present and future."

Corbin on Contracts § 946 at 926 (one vol. ed. 1952); see e.g., Riess v. Murchison, 503 F.2d 499, 1011-12 (9th Cir. 1974).

Where one party is in total breach of his contractual commitments then remaining, the law neither requires the injured party to delay his action until defendant attempts to cure the breach, nor tolls the statute of limitations until he does. Nothing prevented the Butchers from bringing an action against Gilroy when the April 1976 "performance date"--as the Complaint terms it--passed without the sale of the property.

The statute commences operation at the time of the breach, i.e., the failure to perform, rather than when actual damages are sustained as a consequence. E.g. Howarth, supra, 540 P.2d at 490-91. See also 54 C.J.S. Limitations of Actions § 125 (1948) (The statute of limitations begins to run when the contract is broken and the amount or kind of damage which a plaintiff claims and which may be recoverable by him on the breach is immaterial.) Gilroy's failure to perform by April 1976--not the ultimate sale of the property in 1982--was the operative event triggering the running of the limitations period.

III. GILROY'S SALE OF THE PROPERTY IN MARCH OF 1982 DOES NOT
EXTEND THE TIME DURING WHICH APPELLANTS MAY PROPERLY BRING
THIS SUIT.

The Respondent Gilroy sold the real property which was the subject of the Settlement Agreement in March, 1982. That sale, made years after Gilroy's total breach of the Settlement Agreement, cannot extend the time during which the Butchers may rightfully bring suit on the breach of obligations arising from that agreement.

A. Utah Code Ann. § 78-12-44 Does Not Extend Limitations
Period in this Case.

The Butchers argued below and in their Brief that Gilroy's receipt of payment from R.G.H., Inc. in 1982 constitutes a "payment" which operates to toll the statute of limitations pursuant to Utah Code Ann. § 78-12-44 (1978). That section provides:

--In any case founded on contract, when any part of the principal or interest shall have been paid, or an acknowledgment of an existing liability, debt or claim, or any promise to pay the same, shall have been made, an action may be brought within the period prescribed for the same after such payment, acknowledgment or promise; but such acknowledgment or promise must be in

writing, signed by the party to be charged thereby. When a right of action is barred by the provisions of any statute, it shall be unavailable either as a cause of action or ground of defense. [Emphasis added.]

Appellants' reliance on that statute to support their argument, however, is inappropriate.

Utah Code Ann. § 78-12-44 was originally based upon and is similar to a Kansas statute. See Holloway v. Wetzel, 86 Utah 387, 45 P.2d 565 (1935). In construing their statute, the Kansas Supreme Court stated:

While the language of the statute is that a part payment shall operate to toll the limitations, it certainly cannot be understood to mean that such part payment made by any one at any time for any purpose would so operate; and it is well recognized in the books that such payment must be made by the obligor against whom the statute is sought to be tolled, or by someone at his direction, and made as a part payment of the debt, under such circumstances as to amount to an acknowledgment of an existing liability.

Good v. Ehrlich, 67 Kan. 94, 72 P. 545, 546 (1903) (emphasis added). Quoting Wood on Limitations, § 97, the Court continued:

In order to make a money payment a part payment within the statute, it must be shown to be a payment of a portion of an admitted debt, and paid to and accepted by the creditor as such, accompanied by circumstances amounting to an absolute and unqualified acknowledgment of more being due, from which a promise may be inferred to pay the remainder.

Id., 72 P. at 546 (emphasis added).

(In Good v. Erlich, the Supreme Court of Kansas held that collection under a promissory note from a third party pledgee did not constitute a "payment" for purposes of tolling the statute of limitations against the principal debtor.)

The Utah Supreme Court has followed the approach expressed in Good v. Ehrlich in construing Utah Code Ann. § 78-12-44. In Holloway v. Wetzel, 86 Utah 387, 45 P.2d 565 (1935), the Court, in construing a statute identical to Section 78-12-44, stated:

The great weight of authority is to effect that a part payment of either principal or interest by one of two or more joint and several obligors does not of itself suspend the running of the statute of limitations against the other co-obligors The reason for this rule is that joint and several or joint obligors are not necessarily the agent of each other and are not authorized to suspend the running of the

statute, one as against the other, merely because of that relationship; that the payment contemplated by the statute as tolling its effect must be one made by the party himself or by some one authorized by him to make it. The reason is well illustrated by the following language from the case of *Marienthal v. Mosler*, 16 Ohio St. 566, at page 570, in construing a statute identical in language to our Section 104-2-45: "It will be seen, however, that the same effect is given to such part payment as is given to a written promise 'signed by the party charged thereby.' It would seem, therefore, from analogy, that the payment must be made by the party to be affected thereby, or by an agent authorized for that express purpose. In the contemplation of the statute, the part payment of a debt is regarded as evidence of a willingness and obligation to pay the residue, as conclusive as would be a personal written promise to that effect. It could not, then, have been intended to give this effect to payments other than those made by the party himself, or under his immediate direction. Surely nothing short of this would warrant the assumption of a willingness to pay equal to his written promise to that effect."

Holloway v. Wetzell, 86 Utah 387, 391-92 45 P.2d 565, 568
(1935) citation omitted).

It is evident therefore, that before Section 78-12-44 can be applicable to extend a statute of limitations, the following conditions must be satisfied: (1) partial payment of either principal or interest due under a contract must be made, (2) by

the obligor under that contract, and (3) the payment must be made to the creditor under that contract. None of these conditions has been satisfied in the present case. R.G.H., Inc.'s payment to Gilroy arose from the sale of the property to Gilroy, not out of the "agreement" between the Butchers and Gilroy.

Had the Respondent Gilroy made some payment in 1982 to the Butchers, Section 78-12-44 might offer some aid. It is impossible, however, to infer from R.G.H., Inc.'s payment to Gilroy any renewed promise by Gilroy to pay any amount to the Butchers.

If Section 78-12-44 adds anything to this case, it can only add support to the ruling of the court below. To the extent that one may read the Amended Complaint to allege that Gilroy in some way acknowledged or promised to perform the contract following breach through "representations and assurances that he was also trying to perform the contract," Amended Complaint at ¶ 7, R. at 35, the express language of Section 78-12-44 forbids extension of the time for filing of the Butchers' lawsuit. To have such an effect, the new "acknowledgment or

promise must be in writing, signed by the party to be charged thereby." Id. (emphasis added).

The Butchers have pleaded no written promise or acknowledgment signed by Gilroy reestablishing his duty to perform under the contract following the April 1976 breach.

B. Case Law Relied Upon by Appellants Does Not Support Extension of the Limitations Period in this Case.

Both in memorandum below and in their brief on appeal, the Butchers rely upon Fredericksen v. Knight Land Corp., 687 P.2d 34 (Utah 1983), as precedent for maintaining this action. Fredericksen, however, is readily distinguishable on its facts. In that case, the plaintiff claimed entitlement to a share of proceeds from the sale of a number of parcels of land, which share was due whenever a parcel was sold. The parties set no deadlines or dates for the sale as a specific term of their contract. Fredricksen's claims for proceeds simply accrued each time another parcel was sold.

In contrast, the Settlement Agreement in this case expressly set an 18-month (April, 1976) deadline for Gilroy to sell the property and distribute proceeds. Unlike the

Fredericksen transactions, which were divisible into separate breaches accruing upon sale of each parcel, Gilroy was contractually bound to sell only one parcel. His failure to do so by April, 1976 was a total breach of the Agreement. The Butchers' cause of action arose at that time.

As this Court observed in Fredericksen:

The statute of limitations begins to run at the moment that a cause of action arises. See, e.g., Ash v. State, Utah 572 P.2d 1374 (1977); Kimball v. McCornick, 70 Utah 189, 259 P. 313 (1927). 'Ordinarily, a cause of action for a debt begins to run when the debt is due and payable because at that time an action can be maintained to enforce it.' O'Hair v. Kounalis, 23 Utah 2d 355, 357, 463 P.2d 799, 800 (1970) (quoting State Tax Commission v. Spanish Fork, 99 Utah 177, 182, 100 P.2d 525, 577 (1940). See also M.H. Walker Realty Co. v. American Surety Co., 60 Utah 435, 211 P. 998 (1972) (stating that in a breach of contract action the statute of limitations ordinarily begins to run when the breach occurs).

Id., 667 P.2d at 36. Breach of the contract in this case was complete when April, 1976 passed without sale of the property. Gilroy was at that time obligated to sell and distribute a share of the proceeds from that sale to the Butchers. At that moment, Gilroy became liable to the Butchers for breach of

contract and, according to Fredericksen, the statute of limitations commenced to run.

The Butchers cannot now prevail simply by reading the material terms out of the contract.

The limitations period with respect to Gilroy's breach of the agreement expired in April of 1982. The Butchers did not commence their action until March of 1984, almost two full years after the applicable statute of limitations had expired. Neither the sale of the Property to R.G.H., Inc. in March of 1982 nor Gilroy's receipt of payment for the Property tolled or otherwise extended the statute of limitations for an action from Gilroy's alleged April, 1976 breach, as the Court below correctly ruled.

IV. GILROY'S ALLEGED FAILURE TO NOTIFY BUTCHERS OF THE 1982 SALE DOES NOT PROVIDE BASIS FOR ESTOPPEL OR EQUITABLE TOLLING OF LIMITATIONS STATUTE.

Under the terms of the Settlement Agreement, Gilroy was required to sell the property by April, 1976 and deliver 32% of the proceeds to the Butchers. When the property was not sold

in April, 1976, both the Butchers and Gilroy had actual and complete knowledge that the agreement had been breached.

The Butchers' Amended Complaint does not allege facts sufficient to support any equitable tolling of the statute of limitations, or estoppel of Gilroy or R.G.H. to raise that defense. As set forth in Myers v. McDonald, 635 P.2d 84, 86 (Utah 1981), "the general rule is that a cause of action accrues upon the happening of the last event necessary to complete the cause of action." Id., 635 P.2d at 86 (footnote omitted). Accord, Vest v. Bossard, 700 F.2d 600, 608 (10th Cir. 1983). In a contract action, the cause of action accrues upon breach of the contract.

Utah law recognizes three exceptions to this general rule under which the running of the statute of limitations does not begin to run when the cause of action normally "accrues." These exceptions are found where:

1. Commencement of the limitations period is postponed by legislation;

2. Exceptional circumstances make application of the general rule irrational or unjust; or

3. The defendant has concealed or misrepresented one or more facts necessary to a determination that a cause of action exists.

Myers, 635 P.2d at 86.

None of these exceptions apply to this case. The Butchers knew of the breach of contract by Gilroy at and after the time of the breach in April, 1976. Although the Butchers allege that Gilroy concealed the fact that the property had been sold in 1982, this fact was not necessary to a determination by the Butchers that a cause of action against Gilroy existed beginning in April of 1976 for breach of the Settlement Agreement. Every fact needed to plead that cause of action was known to the Butchers from and after that time.

This case is easily distinguished from cases such as Vincent v. Salt Lake County, 583 P.2d 105, 107 (Utah 1978), in which plaintiffs did not know the cause of damage to their property caused by seeping water and relied on a county

official's knowingly false representation that a county storm drain was not leaking into their property. Nowhere does the Complaint allege that Gilroy made repeated promises to the Butchers, that they would in fact be paid, as did the insurance agent in Rice v. Granite School District, 23 Utah 2d 22, 26-28, 456 P.2d 159, 163 (1969).

The Butchers' naked assertion in the brief that "respondents repeatedly promised to try to sell the property to prevent appellant from suing," Butcher Brief at 4, finds no support either in the allegations of the Amended Complaint, see R. at 34-35, or in any competent evidence in the record. No citation to the record is made by the Butchers, leaving this Court properly to assume the correctness of the court's ruling below. See Part V, infra.

V. APPELLANTS HAVE REPEATEDLY FAILED TO COMPLY WITH THE UTAH RULES OF APPELLATE PROCEDURE IN THE ATTEMPTED PROSECUTION OF THIS APPEAL.

From the outset, the Butchers' prosecution of this appeal has been marred by their repeated failure to comply with the requirements of the Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure. While some of the violations of the rules appear technical in nature,

others are of material importance and prejudicial effect. The cumulative effect of the Butchers' delinquencies frustrates and impairs the appeal process as envisioned by the new Rules, all to the prejudice of respondents Gilroy and R.G.H., Inc.

A. RULE 6: The Butchers Failed to File a Legally Sufficient Bond for Costs on Appeal.

Rule 6 of the Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure requires that each appellant "shall file with such notice [of appeal] a bond for costs on appeal . . . The bond shall be in the sum of at least \$300.00, or such greater amount as the district court may order . . . " At the time that the Butchers' notice of appeal was filed, counsel tendered to the clerk the amount of only \$100.00, which was transmitted to this Court. See R. at 92. The Butchers have filed no affidavit of impecuniosity excusing them from compliance with Rule 6.

B. RULE 9: The Butchers Failed to File a Docketing Statement With This Court; The Docketing Statement Served on Respondents Lacked Required Content.

Rule 9(a) of the Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure requires each appellant to file a docketing statement with the Clerk of the Supreme Court within 21 days of the filing of the notice of

appeal, and that "[a]n original and 7 copies shall be filed, together with proof of service." The Butchers had not filed a docketing statement with this Court as late as July 21, 1985, weeks after the deadline had passed.

A document entitled "Docketing Statement" appears in the record below, R. at 84-88, and was served by mail upon Gilroy and R.G.H., Inc. on March 29, 1985. Even if deemed to be the docketing statement required by Rule 9, its content proves materially deficient in several respects: (1) it cites Rule 72, Utah Rules of Civil Procedure as the "authority believed to confer jurisdiction" on this Court to hear this appeal, notwithstanding the fact that the rule had earlier been repealed, see Utah Court Rules Annotated 287 (1985 ed); (2) it makes a general conclusory statement of the issue on appeal notwithstanding the command of Rule 9(c)(5) that such statements are "not acceptable" and that the issue be "expressed in terms and circumstances of the case"; and (3) it failed to include, as an attachment, a copy of the order of the court below granting the joint motion of Gilroy and R.G.H. to dismiss, contrary to the requirements of Rule 9(d)(1).

The Butchers' failure to comply Rule 9's specific requirements both as to content and filing of the docketing statement justify the imposition of harsh sections. Rule 9(e) expressly provides:

Consequences of Failure to Comply.
Docketing statements which fail to comply with this Rule will not be accepted.
Failure to comply may result in dismissal of the appeal or petition.

As the Advisory Committee Note to Rule 9 re-emphasizes, "Paragraph (e) is explicit that a failure to comply with this Rule may result in dismissal fo the appeal."

C. RULE 11: The Butchers Failed to Comply With Requirements Respecting Preparation of Transcript of the Proceeding Below.

Rule 11(c) of the Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure imposes upon each appellant the specific duty to comply with Subparts (d) and (e) of that Rule. Rule 11(e) expressly requires the appellant to request from the court reporter a transcript of "such parts of the proceedings not already on file as he deems necessary" within 10 days after filing the notice of appeal. "If no such parts of the proceedings are to be requested,

within the same period an appellant shall file a certificate to that effect." Rule 11(e)(1), Utah Rule of Appellate Procedure.

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